


Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer Page 2 of 4  

 

Under the authorities of the Acts, FSIS has prescribed rules and regulations for the humane 
slaughtering of livestock, as contained in 9 CFR, Part 313, and the HMSA of 1978. FSIS has 
also developed Rules of Practice regarding enforcement prescribed in 9 CFR Part 500. The 
Rules of Practice describe the types of enforcement actions that FSIS may take and include 
procedures for taking a withholding action and or suspension, with or without prior 
notification, as well as the procedures for filing a complaint to withdraw a Grant of Federal 
Inspection. 

 
Findings/Basis for Action 

 

On October 20, 2020 at 12:21 hours while performing HATS Task Category VIII - Stunning 
effectiveness, the FSIS District Veterinary Medical Specialist (DVMS) and Consumer Safety 
Inspector (CSI) observed the following noncompliance: An establishment employee 
positioned himself to stun a beef steer in the restrainer with a hand-held  captive  bolt  
stunner. Head restraint was not available, and the animal had free movement within the 
restrainer. When the establishment employee went to stun the animal, the first poll stun was 
not effective, and the shot sounded muffled. After the stun attempt, the beef steer was 
conscious as it remained standing with rhythmic heavy breathing and moving back and forth 
within the restrainer. The establishment employee immediately reloaded the same hand-held 
captive bolt stunning device. After an extended period, the employee attempted a second poll 
stun. The animal went down but remained conscious, in a sternal recumbent position with 
rhythmic breathing, controlled movement of the head and eye tracking. The establishment 
employee then reloaded the same hand-held captive bolt stunner and stunned the animal in 
the forehead, rendering the animal unconscious. The DVMS and CSI examined the head and 
found three stun wounds; two of the wounds were approximately one-half inch to the right 
from the center of the poll area and one wound was in the center of the forehead. A verbal 
regulatory control action was taken to discontinue stunning and U.S. Reject tag number 
B5555461 was placed on the restraining area. Establishment Owner, Mr. Joel Inselmann was 
notified of the forthcoming noncompliance record for the failure to meet regulations 9 CFR 
313.15(a)(1) and 313.15(b)(1)(iii) and that the District Office would be contacted through 
supervisory channels for further guidance. 

 
Conclusion 

 

The observations detailed above indicate an egregious violation of the humane handling 
requirements specified within the provisions of 21 U.S.C. 603, Section 3 (b) of the 
FMIA, and 7 U.S.C. 1901 and 1902 of the HMSA of 1978 and fail to comply with the 
regulatory requirements of 9 CFR 313.15(a)(1) and 313.15(b)(1)(iii). 

 
The establishment does not have a humane handling program that meets the four criteria as 
described in the Federal Register Notice of September 9, 2004. Based on the above findings, 
the Des Moines District Office has determined to suspend the assignment of inspectors for 
your slaughter operations, as per the Rules of Practice 9 CFR 500.3(b). 
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You may provide this office written corrective and preventive measures concerning the 
NOS and we will determine further action, if any, based upon your response. Your 
written response should include: 

 
1. An initial assessment of the incident, including determine of the cause. 

2. Immediate corrective actions taken. 

3. Preventive measures to prevent reoccurrence. 

4. Any training of employees and materials used. 

5. Type of monitoring activity for stunning, along with a documentation 

record. 

 
You are reminded that as an operator of a federally inspected establishment, you are 
expected to comply with FSIS regulations, regarding the humane handling and slaughter 
of livestock. Please be advised that you have the right to appeal this matter. If you wish 
to appeal, you should contact: 

 
Attention: Paul Wolseley 
Executive Associate for Regulatory Operations 
Office of Field Operations 
Food Safety and Inspection Service 
United States Department of Agriculture 
1400 Independence Avenue, SW 
Room 344-E, Whitten Building 
Washington, DC 20250 
Phone number: 202-708-9506 

 
In addition, you may also request a hearing regarding this determination pursuant to FSIS 
Rules of Practice, 9 CFR Part 500. The Rules of Practice were published in the Federal 
Register, Vol. 64, No. 228, on November 29, 1999. As specified in Section 500.5(d), 
should you request a hearing, FSIS will file a complaint that will include a request for an 
expedited hearing. 

If you wish to request a hearing regarding this determination, you should contact: 

Scott C. Safian, Branch Chief 
Enforcement Operations Branch 
Office of Investigation, Enforcement and Audit 
Food Safety and Inspection Service 
United States Department of Agriculture 
Stop Code 3753, PP3, Cubicle 8-235-A 
1400 Independence Avenue, SW 
Washington, DC 20250 
Phone number: 202-418-8872 
Fax number: 202-245-5097 






